Public Document Pack
High Peak Borough Council

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA
Date:

Thursday, 7 November 2019

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton
30 October 2019

PART 1
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee
i)
ii)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Other Interests

3.

To approve the Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 4)

4.

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2019 (Pages 5 - 28)

5.

Approved MOT Stations Update (Pages 29 - 32)

6.

Licensing Enforcement Activity (Pages 33 - 36)

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Membership of Licensing Committee
Councillor M Stone (Chair)
Councillor R Baker
Councillor C Farrell
Councillor I Huddlestone
Councillor E Lawson
Councillor K Sizeland

Councillor J Perkins (Vice-Chair)
Councillor L Dowson
Councillor P Hardy
Councillor D Kerr
Councillor R McKeown
Councillor S Young

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
High Peak Borough Council
LICENSING COMMITTEE
Meeting:

Thursday, 11 July 2019 at 6.30 pm in Meeting Room A - Buxton Town Hall

Present:

Councillor M Stone (Chair)
Councillors R Baker, L Dowson, C Farrell, P Hardy, I Huddlestone, D Kerr,
E Lawson, R McKeown, J Perkins, K Sizeland and S Young
Councillors Barrow and Sloman were also in attendance.

20/1

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2019 be
approved as a correct record.

20/2

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY
(Agenda Item 4)
Consideration was given to enforcement actions by the Licensing Service in
the period February 2019 to June 2019. Discussion took place on Buxton
Carnival,
reporting issues, improving information available on the website, visits,
encouraging attendance at Violence and Alcohol Licensing meetings,
training and sustained compliance.
RESOLVED:
1. That that advice on reporting issues and the out of hours telephone
number be circulated to new and returning Councillors.
2. That a weekly list of Licensing applications be circulated to all
Councillors for information.
3. That the contents of the report and presentation be received with
thanks.
The meeting concluded at 6.51 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Licensing Committee
7 November 2019

TITLE:

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicles Database) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2019

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Sloman - Executive Councillor for
Housing and Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

Appendix A – The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2019
Appendix B – Statutory Guidance
Appendix C – Memorandum of Understanding
1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

To inform Members of a new statutory requirement being placed on all Local
Authorities to submit information to the Department for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs (DEFRA) for the purposes of maintaining a database in relation to
all Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles licensed by them

2.

Recommendation

2.1

To note the new statutory provisions of the Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire
Vehicles Database) (England and Wales) Regulations 2019, and associated
statutory guidance.

2.2

That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Environmental Health to
sign the memorandum of understanding and submit the required data.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

The Air Quality (Taxi and Private Hire Vehicles Database) (England and
Wales) regulations 2019 (“the regulations”) came into force on 1st May 2019.
The purpose of the Regulations is to place a statutory duty on all Licensing
Authorities in England and Wales to submit specific data to DEFRA on a
regular basis for the purpose of creating and maintaining a national database

Page 5

of all licensed vehicles. A copy of the Regulations is attached as Appendix A.
The data to be provided and contained in the database is:
 The Vehicle Registration
 The issue date of the licence
 The expiry date of the licence
 Whether the vehicle is a taxi (Hackney Carriage) or a Private Hire
Vehicle (PHV)
 The name of the issuing Authority
 The licence number
 Whether the vehicle is Wheelchair Accessible
3.2

On 18th July 2019 DEFRA published statutory guidance (the guidance) to
assist licensing authorities in implementing the Regulations. It provides details
of the data that the council will be required to submit to DEFRA and advice on
how the data will be managed in compliance with Data Protection legislation,
the background for DEFRA creating the database is contained with the
guidance. A copy of the guidance is attached as Appendix B.

3.3

The guidance suggests that the database should be ready for local authorities
to start submitting data before the end of October 2019; however DEFRA’s
preferred method of data transfer, via a fully integrated API, is unlikely to be
ready before the end of 2019. DEFRA have produced a draft technical
specifications document to data transfer which has been forward to the
Councils IT department for comment.

4.0

Options

4.1

That members note the new statutory provisions of the Air Quality (Taxi and
Private Hire vehicles Database) (England and Wales) Regulations 2019, and
associated Statutory Guidance) in addition the requirement it places on the
Authority as a statutory duty to submit the specified data to DEFRA on a
regular basis for the purpose of creating and maintaining a national database
of all licensed vehicles.

4.2

That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Environmental Health to
sign the memorandum of understanding and submit the data as and when
required by DEFRA.

5.

How this report links to Corporate Priorities

5.1

Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak

6.

Implications

6.1

Community Safety – (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The appropriate enforcement of licensing legislation in partnership with
relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of community
safety.

Page 6

6.2

Workforce
None arise directly from this report

6.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assdessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Diversity and
Equality Policies

6.4

Legal
The requirement of this legislation places a duty on the authority to comply
with the statutory requirements and relevant guidance.

6.5

Sustainability
None arise directly from this report

6.6

Internal and External Consultation
None arise directly from this report

6.7

Risk Assessment
None arising from the report
Mr Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Appendix A, B & C

Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
Alicia.pattersno@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between:

Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra)
AND

[Name of licensing authority]
In respect of:

Provision of taxi and private hire vehicle licensing data as required by the Air
Quality (Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Database) (England and Wales) Regulations
2019

DEFINITIONS
Data Protection Legislation: the GDPR, the LED, the DPA 2018 and any applicable
national implementing Laws as amended from time to time, and all applicable Law about
the processing of personal data and privacy;
Controller, Processor, Processing, Data Subject, Personal Data, Special Categories
of Personal Data, Personal Data Breach, Data Protection Officer take the meaning
given in the GDPR.
Data Loss Event: any event that results, or may result, in unauthorised access to
Personal Data held by either party under this MoU, and/or actual or potential loss and/or
destruction of Personal Data in breach of this MoU, including any Personal Data Breach.
Data Subject Access Request: a request made by, or on behalf of, a Data Subject in
accordance with rights granted pursuant to the Data Protection Legislation to access their
Personal Data.

Page 23

1

DPA 2018: Data Protection Act 2018
GDPR: the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679)
LED: Law Enforcement Directive (Directive (EU) 2016/680)
Protective Measures: appropriate technical and organisational measures which may
include: pseudonymising and encrypting Personal Data, ensuring confidentiality, integrity,
availability and resilience of systems and services, ensuring that availability of and access
to Personal Data can be restored in a timely manner after an incident, and regularly
assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the such measures adopted by it.
Sub-processor: any third Party appointed to process Personal Data on behalf of the
Contractor related to this Agreement.
Licensing Authority: the licensing authority who is party to this agreement, [INSERT
NAME OF LICENSING AUTHORITY]
Air Quality Regulations: the Air Quality (Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Database)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2019

1. Parties to this Memorandum of Understanding
1.1. The Parties to this Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) are the Department
of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) and the Licensing Authority.

2. Purpose of this MoU
2.1. The Purpose of this MoU is to clarify how the Parties will meet their respective
obligations under Data Protection Legislation in relation to the processing of
Personal Data as necessary to meet the requirements of the Air Quality
Regulations. It explains how the parties will co-operate to ensure compliance
with all relevant legislation.
3. Description of the Data and method of sharing
3.1. The Air Quality Regulations specify the data that The Licensing Authority is
required to share with Defra – the Data
3.2. The Air Quality Regulations specify the minimum frequency at which the Data
must be shared with Defra. The Data must be transmitted to Defra at least
once a week and additionally as requested for database development and
testing purposes.
3.3. The Licensing Authority will transfer the Data to Defra using either an
Application Programming Interface (API) or a CSV upload. In executing the
transfer, both parties will comply with the security arrangements described in
clause 9.

Page 24

2

4. The Licensing Authority’s legal basis under the GDPR for sharing the Data
with Defra
4.1. Article 6.1(e) of the GDPR legitimises the processing of personal data that is
necessary for compliance with a legal obligation to which the controller is
subject.
4.2. The Licensing Authority as a Controller is subject to a legal obligation to
provide the Data to Defra, and therefore such processing as is necessary to
provide the Data is legitimised by Article 6(1)(e).
5. Accountability
5.1. Defra is a separate Controller for the Data once received from The Licensing
Authority and is responsible as a Controller for complying with Data Protection
Legislation in relation to its further processing of the Data.
6. Fairness and transparency
6.1. Both parties will provide appropriate privacy notices to data subjects, in
accordance with the requirements of the GDPR and all relevant good practice
guidance issued by the Information Commissioner’s Office. Specifically, The
Licensing Authority will inform data subjects that Licensing Authorities are
required by Law to share the Data with Defra so that Defra can create a
database to support the operation of charging clean air zones by local
authorities or other air quality plans.
7. Accuracy of shared data
7.1. The Licensing Authority will take all reasonable steps to ensure the accuracy
and currency of the Data before it is transmitted to Defra. Where the
Licensing Authority becomes aware of inaccuracies in the Data after its
transmission to Defra, it will notify Defra of those inaccuracies within one
working day of them being discovered and the parties will agree a suitable
rectification plan.
7.2. Defra will take all reasonable steps to maintain the accuracy and currency of
the Data, and will notify The Licensing Authority if it becomes aware of any
significant inaccuracies.
8. Retention of shared data
8.1. Defra will retain the Data for a period not exceeding seven years for revenue
purposes from the date received from The Licensing Authority subject to any
relevant exemptions under Data Protection Legislation. Aggregated data may
be retained for historic scientific analysis. Aggregated data means information
which has been collated for monthly reports. Historical aggregated data will be
retained indefinitely for scientific purposes.
8.2. At the end of that retention period, Defra will arrange for the secure
destruction or deletion of the Data, in accordance with clause 12.

Page 25

3

9. Data security
9.1. The Licensing Authority will ensure the safe transmission of the Data to Defra,
in accordance with the security requirements of Data Protection Legislation
and industry good practice.
9.2. Defra will ensure that its Processing of the Data meets the requirements of
Data Protection Legislation and the HMG Security Policy Framework. These
same requirements shall apply to the use by Defra of any Processor.
10. Data subjects rights
10.1. Each party will answer any data subject rights requests that are made to
them for Data that they are processing as a Controller, in accordance with
their obligations under the GDPR.
11. Freedom of Information (FOI) requests.
11.1. Each party will answer any FOI requests that they receive for information
about: the Data for which they are the Controller; the Air Quality Regulations;
or this MoU.
11.2. The party who has received the request will consult the other party where
disclosure of information could impact on the interest of the other party.
11.3. The party who has received the request will take into account the views of
the other party before deciding whether or not to disclose the information.
Specifically, they will:
11.4. Allow the other party a period of at least 5 working days to respond to the
consultation;
11.5. Not disclose any personal data that would breach Data Protection
Legislation; and
11.6. Not disclose information that would prejudice either the security of the Data
or the security arrangements of the other party.
12. Audit and inspection
12.1. Defra reserves the right to carry out a review of The Licensing Authority’s
compliance with the terms of this MoU, and The Licensing Authority agrees
to cooperate fully with any such review. Defra will give 28 days’ notice of
such a review.
12.2. Defra will share with The Licensing Authority the outcome of any audits or
reviews that have been carried out on its activities as a Controller, to the
extent that they have relevance to the processing of the Data received from
The Licensing Authority.

Page 26

4

12.3. Defra will notify The Licensing Authority of any audits that are being carried
out by the Information Commissioner’s Office under Data Protection
Legislation, to the extent they have relevance to the processing of the Data
received from The Licensing Authority.
13. Data loss event
13.1. In relation to Data received from The Licensing Authority, Defra
(dpo@defra.gov.uk) will notify The Licensing Authority immediately of any
serious Data Loss Event that meets the threshold for notification to the
Information Commissioner’s Office or affected Data Subjects. Such
notification will be to a contact nominated by the Licensing Authority. Less
serious incidents will be reported on a monthly basis.
14. Agreement and signatories
14.1. The parties will review the terms of this MoU on an annual basis, or sooner if
necessary to reflect a material change to any of the provisions in this MoU.
14.2. The parties enter into this MoU intending to honour its provisions, but the
MoU does not constitute a legally binding contract and it does not affect the
obligations that each party has under the legislation referred to in this MoU.

Signed on behalf of:

Defra

Name of licensing authority

…………………………………

…………………………………………

[name and position]

[name and position]

Date
…………………………………….

Date
……………………………………..

Page 27

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Licensing Committee
7 November 2019

TITLE:

Approved MOT Stations Update

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Sloman - Executive Councillor for
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

1.

Reason for the Report

1.1

The report is to update the Committee on the review and feedback from the
approved MOT stations since its implementation in 2018.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Committee notes the contents of the report and continues to support
the approved list of garages.

3.

Executive Summary

3.1

In 2018 the authority introduced a list of approved garages within the
Borough for delivery of the Council’s required taxi testing regime. The
introduction of scheme was to support the authorities licensed vehicle owners
to give a greater choice of premises where they can take their vehicles for the
required testing

3.2

It was agreed by members that a review of the current list should be
undertaken and feedback obtained from the premises within the scheme.

3.3

All of the approved garages were contacted and asked to complete a
feedback questionnaire with the following questions.




Are you agreeable to remaining on our Approved List going forward
Have you experienced any difficulties in accommodating the number of
licensed vehicles that have presented themselves to you
Some of the licensed vehicles are adapted or ‘stretch’ vehicles – are
you able to accommodate vehicles that have a longer wheelbase, as

Page 29








we have had some feedback from Operators that there are too few
Approved Centres that can accommodate such vehicles.
One of our Policy conditions is that any advisories identified on an MOT
must be dealt with before their vehicle is presented for renewal. Have
you experienced any pressure from Operators to minimise or eliminate
advisories at the time of test? If so, can you give some detail on the
problem you experienced?
It is the Council’s aim going forward to ask Approved Centres to check
items that are not included in the standard MOT. As an example, we
would like Approved Centres to check the seat belts, fastenings and
securing mechanisms associated with securing wheelchairs in position.
We might ask that Approved centres check vehicles for policy
requirements over and above the MOT standard – as an example,
whether the Hackney Carriage vehicles are displaying the HPBC
Decals on the bonnet and on each side of the vehicle, or whether
Private Hire Vehicles are displaying the name of the Operator on the
side. Would you be willing to extend the vehicle testing to include some
additional non-standard tests?
Do you have the facility to carry out LOLER testing on powered Tail-lifts
on disabled access vehicles?
Do you have any other feedback to give us, or any additional comments
on the questions above.

3.4

The responses received from the garages were extremely positive and the
authority did not have any serious concerns reported. All of the garages were
more than happy to carry out additional checks as and when required by the
Authority.

3.5

The survey will be repeated every 12 months and a dedicated taxi
email box has been set up to enable any issues to be reported promptly.

4.

Options and Analysis

4.1

It is recommended that the Committee agrees to continue with the Approved
Garage list as the feedback received has been very positive.

5.

Implications

5.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The appropriate enforcement of licensing legislation in partnership
with relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of
community safety.

5.2

Workforce
None.

Page 30

5.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

5.4 Financial Considerations
There are no financial considerations to consider, all costs will be
met by the Vehicle Operators.
5.5 Legal
As considered in the report.
5.6 Sustainability
The continuation of the approved garage list will ensure that the
Authority is consistent in its approach to MOT Testing
5.7 How this report links to Corporate Priorities



Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak
Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth, development and
regeneration

Mr Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer
Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/3863/List-ofapproved-MOTstations/pdf/HPBC_Approved_MOT_Garages.pdf

Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
alicia.patterson@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL
Licensing Committee
7 November 2019

TITLE:

Licensing Enforcement Activity (JulyNovember)

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR:

Councillor Sloman - Executive Councillor for
Housing and Licensing

CONTACT OFFICER:

Alicia Patterson – Head of Environmental
Health

WARDS INVOLVED:

(All Wards);

1. Recommendations
1.1

That the Committee notes the content of the report.

2. Executive Summary
2.1

In the period July 2019 to November 2019 the Licensing Service has engaged
in a number of enforcement actions. These activities have involved reactive
responses to complaints and intelligence received from the public and partner
agencies as well as proactive compliance checks.

2.2

Officers will seek to encourage licence holders to conduct their activity in a
safe manner, maintain good standards and to comply with the law. Officers
have to exercise considerable discretion when approaching individual licence
holders. Licensees are in our experience anxious to comply with the law and
for such cases the officer's role will be to provide guidance and advice.
However, in carrying out their functions officers are authorised with a wide
range of powers and, may for example, require entry at all reasonable times or
require the production of certain documents.

2.3

If officers find evidence the law is being broken and enforcement
is required, they can respond in various ways. They may instruct or warn by
letter; revoke or suspend a licence; and, where the circumstances warrant it,
they will formally caution or prosecute without prior warning and without
recourse to alternative sanctions. Officers will have due regard to the relevant
enforcement policies when determining the most appropriate course of action.
Details of the enforcement action carried out by officers during the relevant
period is provided below:

Page 33

Frequency Enforcement Activity
Frequency
286
129
44
13 granted
12 rejected
10 granted
2 rejected
4 granted
1 In progress
6
87
33
3
1
15
6
6
2.4

Enforcement Activity
Letters/Emails to Taxi Drivers regarding renewals
Safeguarding letters
Vehicle Inspection Letters
House to House Collection Permits
Street Collection Permits Issued
Road Closures
Street Trading Consents
Temporary Event Notices Issued with Alcohol
Late Temporary Event Notices Issued with Alcohol
Temporary Event Notices issued without Alcohol
Late Temporary Event Notice issued without Alcohol
Licensing Officer/Police Visit
Licensing Officer/Police & Trading Standards visits
Licensing Officer/Police, Fire & Trading Standards visits

The primary focus of enforcement work to date has been on ensuring that the
law in relation to all relevant licensing legislation and guidance is properly
observed. In considering the focus of this activity the Licensing Service has
had reference to:
 Those premises/vehicles against which complaints have been received.
 Those premises which do not hold a licence but where intelligence
suggests licensable activity is taking place.

2.5

A variety of breaches were identified in the course of these activities but were
addressed by a voluntary change of behaviour on the part of the licence
holder or via specific action by the Licensing Service and partners. In none of
the cases was further legal action or the application of criminal sanction
necessary.

2.6

During this period no complaints have been received relating to smoking on
licensed premises.
 As part of the (Health Act 2006) and associated Regulations premises
have to comply with signage requirements. All premises visited are now
compliant with displaying the required signage.
 No fixed penalty tickets in relation to offences of witnessed or reported
smoking in premises have been issued.

Page 34

3.

Options
There are no options to consider.

4.

Implications

4.1

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The appropriate enforcement of licensing Legislation in partnership
with relevant agencies is a key tool in assuring the maintenance of
community safety.

4.2

Workforce
None arise directly from this report.

4.3

Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's
Diversity and Equality Policies.

4.4

Financial Considerations
The discharge of inspection and enforcement functions have been
factored into previous budget calculations.

4.5

Legal
The requirements of the various licensing legislation places a duty
on license holders under the criminal law. In enforcing the
conditions relating to this legislation the Licensing Service has
powers to undertake prosecutions relevant to the offences
identified.

4.6

Sustainability
None arise directly from this report.

4.7

Internal and External Consultation
None arise directly from this report.

4.8

Risk Assessment
None arising from the report.

Mr Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Contact Details

Alicia Patterson
Head of Environmental Health
alicia.patterson@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

